

Skills Assessor 8.5.648

Manager User Guide

Information contained herein is proprietary and confidential and cannot be disclosed or duplicated without the prior written consent of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc.

Copyright © 2017 Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All rights reserved.

About Genesys

Genesys is the world's leading provider of customer service and contact software - with more than 4,000 customers in 80 countries. Drawing on its more than 20 years of customer service innovation and experience, Genesys is uniquely positioned to help companies bring their people, insights and customer channels together to effectively drive today's customer conversation. Genesys software directs more than 100 million interactions every day, maximizing the value of customer engagement and differentiating the experience by driving personalization and multi-channel customer service - and extending customer service across the enterprise to optimize processes and the performance of customer-facing employees. Go to www.genesys.com for more information.

Each product has its own documentation for online viewing at the Genesys Documentation website.

Notice

Although reasonable effort is made to ensure that the information in this document is complete and accurate at the time of release, Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. cannot assume responsibility for any existing errors. Changes and/or corrections to the information contained in this document may be incorporated in future versions.

Your Responsibility for Your System's Security

You are responsible for the security of your system. Product administration to prevent unauthorized use is your responsibility. Your system administrator should read all documents provided with this product to fully understand the features available that reduce your risk of incurring charges for unlicensed use of Genesys products.

Trademarks

Genesys and the Genesys logo are registered trademarks of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All other company names and logos may be trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders. © 2017 Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All rights reserved.

Technical Support from VARs

If you have purchased support from a value-added reseller (VAR), please contact the VAR for technical support.

Ordering and Licensing Information

Complete information on ordering and licensing Genesys products can be found in the <u>Genesys</u> <u>Licensing Guide</u>.

Released by: Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. http://www.genesys.com/

Document Version: 85_skillsassessor_manager-user__06-2017_v8.5.642.00



Contents

| 1 Overview | 5 |
|---|----|
| 1 Logging In | 6 |
| 2 Taking an Assessment | 7 |
| 3 Types of Assessments | 11 |
| 3.1 Timed and Untimed Assessments | 11 |
| 3.1.1 Question Examples | 12 |
| 3.2 Feedback Assessments | 18 |
| 4 Viewing Results | 19 |
| 5 Viewing Feedback Results | 21 |
| 6 Managing and Viewing Crystal Reports | 22 |
| 6.1 Managing Report Settings | 22 |
| 6.2 Managing Reports | 22 |
| 6.3 Viewing Reports | 23 |
| 7 Certificates | 24 |
| 8 DNA | 25 |
| 8.1 Filtered DNA | 25 |
| 9 Changing Your Password | 31 |
| 10 Adding a new Tag within manage assessments | 32 |
| 11 Personal Development Reviews | 33 |
| 11.1 PDR Dashboard Widget | |
| 11.2 Feature notes | |
| 11.2.1 PDR Dashboard Widget | 34 |
| 12 Logging Out | 35 |

Table of Figures

| Figure 1: Log in screen | 6 |
|---|------|
| Figure 2: Assessments on the My Development Screen | 7 |
| Figure 3: Assessment with dates | 8 |
| Figure 4: Assessment Completion | 9 |
| Figure 5: Launching an Assessment | 9 |
| Figure 6: Media information | 9 |
| Figure 7: Time Assessment information | 9 |
| Figure 8: Question time recorded | . 10 |
| Figure 9: Forward only navigation. | . 10 |
| Figure 10: Knowledge Nudge Information. | . 10 |
| Figure 11: List of assessments | . 11 |
| Figure 12: Starting an assessment | . 12 |
| Figure 13: The Navigator | . 12 |
| Figure 14: Multiple Choice question | . 13 |
| Figure 15: Pick Correct question | |
| Figure 16: Pick Correct question | . 14 |
| Figure 17: Text question | . 14 |
| Figure 18: Numeric question | . 15 |
| Figure 19: Feedback question | . 15 |
| Figure 20: Question media | |
| Figure 20: Additional Information | |
| Figure 21: Feedback on other users | |
| Figure 22: Viewing assessment reports by individual or team | |
| Figure 23: Detailed assessment results | |
| Figure 24: Viewing question detail and provided answers | |
| Figure 25: Exporting assessment details | |
| Figure 26: Rebuilding feedback reports | . 21 |
| Figure 27 Feedback Results | . 21 |
| Figure 28: Manage Reports Page | . 22 |
| Figure 29: Viewing certificates | . 24 |
| Figure 30: View Filtered DNA page | . 25 |
| Figure 31: Viewing detailed information in the View Filtered DNA page | . 26 |
| Figure 32: Viewing individual DNA results | . 26 |
| Figure 33: Viewing individual DNA results | . 27 |
| Figure 34: Viewing the DNA map | . 28 |
| Figure 35: Comparing individuals with other job roles | . 28 |
| Figure 36: Assigning Learning Items | . 29 |
| Figure 37: Assigning Learning Items | . 29 |
| Figure 38: Assigning Learning Items | . 30 |
| Figure 39: Changing your passwordTagging | . 31 |
| Figure 40: Adding a Tag | |
| Figure 41: Newly added tags | . 32 |
| Figure 42: Removing a Tag | . 32 |
| Figure 43: PDR Dashboard | . 33 |
| Figure 44: Reviewing objectives | . 33 |
| Figure 45: Logout | . 35 |

1 Overview

This Manager Guide has been designed to walk the user through the use and navigation of the Skills Assessor application.

1 Logging In

Skills Assessor is accessed through a web browser, pointing at a site either either on the Internet (externally hosted) or over an internal company intranet (installed 'on-premise' at a site managed by the user's organisation).

Once the landing page is reached, a login screen similar to the one shown below will be displayed. (The application can be customized so that your organisation's branding standards, including logo and colour scheme, are used.)

Enter your unique user name and password, and click on the Log In button.

| silverlining solutions | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|
| Welc | ome | | | |
| Demo | Ŧ | | | |
| admin | | | | |
| ••••• | | | | |
| | LOG IN | | | |
| | | | | |
| ? Trouble logging | in | | | |
| Optimizer Version 4.5.0 US Patent #8589215. O Copyright © 2015 Silver Li Reser | ther patents pending. ning Solutions. All Rights | | | |

Figure 1: Log in screen

Note: depending on the configuration of the installation, login details may not need to be entered in order to access Skills Assessor (e.g. if Acitive Directory authentication has been enabled). Your trainer will guide you on the login rules for your organization.

The My Development screen will be displayed, containing any assessments that have been assigned.

If any of the assessments have been given a completion date, the date will be listed in the **Date By** column.



2 Taking an Assessment

Any assessments that have been assigned will be visible under My Development page.

| MY DEVELOPMENT | |
|--|------------|
| All · All · All Assignment Types · | |
| 🖨 Assessment01 Latest Exp | ß |
| Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Sed eu aliquet massa, ac laoreet ligula. Cras in quam viverra, pretium diam non, tristique orci. Sed tempor purus ut quam convallis, vitae commodo pu Donec a sodales erat. Fusce cursus ligula vel finibus laoreet. Fusce dui ligula, varius quis quam rutrum, faucibus eleifend turpis. Pellentesque tincidunt portitior rhoncus. Aenean convallis consectetur volutpa lobortis nisl orci. Cras fringilla nec dolor quis scelerisque. Cras pharetra urna eget augue ullamcorper finibus. Mauris elementum, justo quis tincidunt sollicitudin, augue lectus aliquet turpis, vel suscipit massa | t. Donec |
| 🛱 Self and Manager | ď |
| Demo | ß |
| Welcome to the Demo Assessment. When ready click the start button to begin. | |
| 🖨 Handsets - iphone | ß |
| Admin Assessment | C. |
| 🖨 Baseline | |
| | 30/01/2016 |
| 🛱 Your Water | |
| | (80%) |

Figure 2: Assessments on the My Development Screen

Active Assessments are presented at the top of the list. Under each Assessment a snippet of any introduction text is also displayed enbling the user to quickly see key information regarding the Assessment.

The list can be filtered using the 3 drop down menus at the top of the page.



Assessment Style:

- Assessment Standard Assessments are typically used as a knowledge check to assess the users understanding of a specific subject.
- Knowledge Nudge This is a piece of learning that has been assigned to the user. This can be in the form of an e-learning course, document, referal to a web site or knowledge base.
- Feedback on others This is used when requesting feed back on peers and is typically used for 360° feedback reviews.
- Combined Feedback this is typically used for employee review periods / 1-2-1's and requires both the Agent and Manager scores, which form the basis for the review

conversation. Once the scores have been agreed and signed by both parties the final ratings are recorded.

Assessment Types

- Individually Assigned these are Assessments that have been directly assigned to the user.
- Group Assigned these Assessments have been automatically assigned based on the user being part of a Group. Groups are used to filter users for reporting and Assessment purposes. For example new recriuts could be added to the Induction Group, in doing this all of the induction specific Assessments are automatically assigned to the users.

When assigning Assessments specific date ranges or completion dates can be applied to the Assessment. Assessments with dates applied will be displayed with a calendar icon and the completion date. If the current date is within the Assessment date range then the Assessment will be listed as part of the active Assessments, if the current date is before the date range the Assessment will be listed with the completed / inactive Assessments.

The below example shows the Baseline Assessment that have been assigned with a date range that is in the future.

| Y DEVELOPMENT |
|---|
| Image: Comparison of the system All Assignment Types |
| Assessment01 Latest Exp |
| rem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Sed eu aliquet massa, ac laoreet ligula. Cras in quam viverra, pretium diam non, tristique orci. Sed tempor purus ut quam convallis, vitae commodo purus pretium. nec a sodales erat. Fusce cursus ligula vel finibus laoreet. Fusce dui ligula, varius quis quam rutrum, faucibus eleifend turpis. Pellentesque tincidunt portitior rhoncus. Aenean convallis consectetur volutpat. Donec ortis nisl orci. Cras fringilla nec dolor quis scelerisque. Cras pharetra urna eget augue ullamcorper finibus. Mauris elementum, justo quis tincidunt sollicitudin, augue lectus aliquet turpis, vel suscipit massa tellus a lore |
| Self and Manager |
| Demo C |
| elcome to the Demo Assessment. When ready click the start button to begin. |
| Handsets - iphone |
| Admin Assessment |
| Baseline |
| 30/01/2016 |

Figure 3: Assessment with dates

Once started, an Assessment will display a completion icon and the percentage completed so far. The below example shows that the Demo Assessment is 75% complete.

| MY DEVELOPMENT | |
|---|-----------------------------------|
| All • All Assignment Types • | |
| 🔁 Assessment01 Latest Exp | ď |
| Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipiscing elit. Sed eu aliquet massa, ac laoreet ligula. Cras in quam viverra, pretium diam non, tristique orci. Sed tempor purus ut quam conv Donec a sodales erat. Fusce cursus ligula vel finibus laoreet. Fusce dui ligula, varius quis quam rutrum, faucibus eleifend turpis. Pellentesque tincidunt portitior rhoncus. Aenean convo lobortis nisl orci. Cras fringilla nec dolor quis scelerisque. Cras pharetra uma eget augue ullamcorper finibus. Mauris elementum, justo quis tincidunt sollicitudin, augue lectus aliquet t | allis consectetur volutpat. Donec |
| E Self and Manager | G |
| 🔁 Demo | ď |
| Welcome to the Demo Assessment. When ready click the start button to begin. | 75% |



Figure 4: Assessment Completion

To start taking an assessment, click the name or launch icon \square . This will display a screen similar to the one below.

Figure 5: Launching an Assessment

Based on the content of the Assessment a number of informational icons may be displayed under the Assessment name. When clicked on the icon will reveal additional information around playing media, timed Assessments, question timing and navigation.

Below is an example of the information available when the Assessment contain audio or video clips.



Figure 6: Media information

The following examples are displayed when either the Assessment or Individual questions are being timed.



Figure 8: Question time recorded

The final example is displayed when an Assessment can only be taken in the order that it was created and any skipped questions can't be revisited.



Figure 9: Forward only navigation.

If a Knowledge Nudge have been assigned to the Assessment then the following will be displayed.



Figure 10: Knowledge Nudge Information.

A Knowledge Nudge can be either a document, website or e-learning that the user must read, visit or watch before taking the Assessment. The following Assessment could be a series of questions to test the users understanding of the Knowledge Nudge content or simple Feedback form.

It is important to remember that the Assessment can't be started until the Knowledge Nudge has been opened and closed.

Once ready to take the Assessment click on the Start button to begin.

When the Assessment has been completed it will be move to the bottom of the users My Development page and will display both the finished icon and the percentage score.



3 Types of Assessments

There are three types of assessments:

Timed – This type of assessment has to be completed in one session, and a clock in the top-left corner of the window will indicate the time available to complete the assessment.

Not Timed – This type of assessment can be accessed more than once, allowing completion at any time before the completion date.

Feedback – For this type of assessment, individuals rate themselves against specific criteria.

Feedback assessments can be set to different deployment modes which control who the assessment is assigned to, e.g. **self only** or **self and manager**. If an assessment is set to the **self and manager** deployment mode, both users will be required to complete a combined feedback assessment together and for this assessment to be signed (via user password) before it is recorded in the system. If a **self and manager** assessment has been set to only require user feedback before a combined test, the manager will have the option of initiating a combined feedback test without having previously completed their individual feedback assessment.

3.1 Timed and Untimed Assessments

To start taking an assessment, click the name, as shown below.

If the assessment is timed, the time allowed will be displayed in the top-left corner of the window.



Figure 11: List of assessments

This will display a screen similar to the one shown in the following image.

At the bottom of the screen is an option to check that any audio can be heard. Click the **Play** button to check this.

When you are ready to take the assessment, click **Start**. To close the assessment and take it later, click **Close**.

Figure 12: Starting an assessment

3.1.1 Question Examples

There are different types of assessments and questions. If the Navigator appears on the top of the window, you can click a question number jump to a specific question or the Prev(ious) and Next buttons to move back and forward through the Assessment.

If the assessment is timed, the time remaining will be displayed between the navigation bar and the Question.



Time remaining: 11:11

Figure 13: The Navigator

Follow the instructions for each of the questions, and after selecting the answer, click Next to move to the next question. After each question has been completed, the Navigator will be updated (if available) to indicate which questions have been completed.

There are 6 different question types that can be used during an Assessment:

- Multiple Choice pick 1 correct answer from the list.
- Pick Correct pick multiple correct answers from the list.
- Hot Spot mark the answer on an image with a 'pin.'
- Text asnwer using a simple word or phrase.
- Numeric answer using a numberic value.
- Feedback provided a rating between x and y.

Each question may also contain additional content such as:

• A link to a website



- An image
- A video clip

Multiple Choice

| QUESTION TYPES | | |
|---|-------------------------|------|
| | PREV 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 NEXT | |
| 图 Time remaining: 10:01 | | |
| This is an example of a Multiple choice question. | | |
| Which day of the week begins with W? | | |
| O Monday | | |
| O Tuesday | | |
| Wednesday | | |
| O Thursday | | |
| ⊖ Friday | | |
| | | |
| PREV | FINISH | NEXT |

Figure 14: Multiple Choice question

A Multiple choice question may contain multiple answer but only 1 can be selected as your answer.

Pick Correct

| QUESTION TYPES | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------|------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|------|--|
| | PREV | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | NEXT | |

Time remaining: 10:47

| This is an example of a Pick Correct Question. Which 3 of the following are colours? | | |
|--|--------|------|
| ✓ Brown □ Phone ✓ Red □ Car ✓ Yellow | | |
| PREV | FINISH | NEXT |

Figure 15: Pick Correct question

With Pick Correct question you have the ability to select multiple answers, as you can see from the example above.

Not all questions will specifically ask for X correct answers so it is important to remember when the answers use a 'check box' \square you are able to select more than one answer. If the answers are marked with a radio button \bigcirc then the question is a Multiple Choice and only 1 answer can be selected.

Hot Spot

| QUESTION TYPES | | |
|--|--------------------|------|
| | 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 NEXT | |
| 🖾 Time remaining: 11:39 | | |
| Hot Spot Question Place the pin where you think the treasure is hidden. | | |
| | | |
| | FINISH | NEXT |

Figure 16: Pick Correct question

Hot Spot questions test you understanding by asking you to identify a specific item ion a picture. This could be along the lines of 'Please identify the power button on our new product.' In the example above the question is just for fun and you have to guess where the treasure has been buried.

| Text | | |
|---|-------------------------|------|
| QUESTION TYPES | | |
| | PREV 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 NEXT | |
| Time remaining: 11:11 | | |
| Simple Text Question Please type the missing word from the following nursery rhyme. Three blind | | |
| mice | | |
| PREV | FINISH | NEXT |
| Figure 47. Text question | | |

Figure 17: Text question

Text questions require you to provide either a single work or simple phrase to assess whether you know the correct term, name or phrase.

Numeric

| QUESTION TYPES | | | |
|--|----------------|----------|------|
| | PREV 1 2 3 4 5 | 6 7 NEXT | |
| 🛣 Time remaining: 10:29 | | | |
| Numeric Question Please enter the missing number from the following sequence. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, , 7, 8, 9, 10 | | | |
| d | | | |
| PREV | FINISH | l i | NEXT |

Figure 18: Numeric question

Numeric questions are similar to Text questions only the answer is a number. This might be used to assess whether you know the price of a new product or the maximum fine if there has been a breach of regulations.

Feedback

| UESTION TYPES | | | |
|---|--------------------|--|--|
| | PREV 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 | | |
| Time remaining: 8:47 | | | |
| Feedback Question | | | |
| How likely are you to recommend the last film you watched to your | friends of family? | | |
| 1 = not at all 10 = definitely, its the best film I've seen | | | |
| © 1 | | | |
| 0 2 | | | |
| O 3 | | | |
| 0.4 | | | |
| 0 s | | | |
| 0 6 | | | |
| 0.7 | | | |
| • 8 | | | |
| 0 9 | | | |
| O 10 | | | |
| Comments | | | |
| comments and feedback can be added as free text | | | |

Figure 19: Feedback question

Feedback questions are not designed to assess your knowledge but to gather feedback in the form of a rating. The most common feedback question that you are likely to have seen is 'Out of 10, where 1 is not very likely and 10 is exttemely likely, how likely are you to recommend out services to a friend?'

In a work environment you may see questions along the lines of:

- How would you rate this Assessment / the Training course content.
- How would you rate your performance this month?
- Do you feel that you are fully supported by the management team to carry out your role?
- •

Feedback questions can have any scale and in some cases the scale might be replaced with phrases rather than numbers.

Media within questions.

As mentions previously questions can have URLs, Images and Videos attached. The below demonstrates how each of these are displayed within the Assessment question.

The URL / web address and description are displayed above the question text. Clicking on the link will launch the web page so that you can read the information before answering the question.

> Videos / Images will display next to the question text. Video clips can be viewed as displayed or full screen and you can play / pause / rewind / fast forward the clip as required.

> Images can be views as displayed or made full size by clicking on the image.

Images and videos can also be attached to the answers and have the same controls as those attached to the question.

Figure 20: Question media



Additional Info

| select the right answer | | |
|---|--------|--|
| correct incorrect Do Not Know Additional Info | | |
| another critical | | |
| correct also correct incorrect Do Not Know | | |
| | FINISH | |

Figure 20: Additional Information

If a question asks for additional info a text box will appear for you to enter any reasoning for your answer or for any information regarding the answer or question that you may have.

3.2 Feedback Assessments

If a feedback assessment has been assigned to you to complete for one of your team members, this will appear in the list of assessments. You can view just these assessments via the filters.



Figure 21: Feedback on other users

Click on the individuals name to select the assessment to complete.

Work through the assessment selecting the relevant answer.

You can also have the option of completing **combined feedback assessments**. These assessments allow you to see the employee's results, your own feedback results and then enter the agreed combined results.



4 Viewing Results

To view Assessment results from the menu select **User Results Reports** from the **Reporting** section. Based on your position within the hierarchy you can run the **User Results Report** for a whole site, department, team or individual.

| USER RESULTS I | JSER RESULTS REPORT | | | | | |
|---|----------------------------------|--|---|--|--------|--|
| Report filters: | Start Date 14-1 End Date 14-1 | | e | ● The selected position only ◎ Into the hierarchy 1 ↓ level(s) down | Export | |
| Demo Inc. (Demo Admin Head of Operations | | | | The report needs to be rebuilt to reflect your selections Rebuild report | | |
| Select All | | | | | | |
| Assessment 1 (1) | | | | | | |

Figure 22: Viewing assessment reports by individual or team

- Select required date range.
- From the hierarchy view select the hierarchy level or individual.
- Select the assessments from the bottom left hand window. These are all of the assessments that the individual has completed.
- Click on **Rebuild report** to view the results.

The results can be expanded by clicking on the Assessment name to reveal the Content level results. Click on the Content name to view the individual questions as per the example below.

| USER RESULTS | 5 REPORT | | | |
|--|--|---|--|--------|
| Report filters: | Start Date 14-Nov-2015 End Date 14-Dec-2015 | 100 100 | The selected position only ◎ Into the hierarchy 1 ↓ level(s) down | Export |
| Demo Inc. (Demo Ad Head of Operation | | * Assessment 1 * Questions | 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% | |
| Select All | | type the word 'right'. Question 1 | 10000% | |
| 🕏 Assessment 1 (1) | | New Hot Spot Question New Numeric Question | 0.00 00 m | |
| | | New Content | 0.075 | |

Figure 23: Detailed assessment results

By right clicking on a question, the option to View Detail is presented.

Click on **View Detail** to reveal the answer given and the correct answer. Where a team has been selected, (x levels into the hierarchy) it will list all of the team with their respective answers.

| (| | | | × |
|-----------------|--------------------------|---|----------------------------|---|
| Question Type - | Multiple Choice Question | | Result | _ |
| Question | Question 1 | | | |
| Correct Answer | Answer 1 | | | |
| Demo Admin | Answer 1 | ۹ | /4 Pight 100.00% (1) | |

Figure 24: Viewing question detail and provided answers

The option to export the information into an Excel spreadsheet is also available by clicking on the **select for export** button and then click on **Export**.



Figure 25: Exporting assessment details

Click on the disk icon to select the level of data that you want to export. After selecting your required level of data aggregation click on the Export button to download the data as a CSV file.



5 Viewing Feedback Results

Users can be selected at a hierarchy level or individually within the hierarchy structure.

Using the date range will filter the feedback assessments that the individual has completed in the bottom left hand window. Select the specific assessment and click on **Rebuild report**.

| FEEDB | ACK RESULTS REPORT | | | | |
|----------|--|---|----------|---|--------|
| Report F | | art Date 14-Nov-2015 ad Date 16-Dec-2015 | 10 10 | | Export |
| | o Inc. (Demo Admin (+1 other)) d of Operations: (Hww Bristow) | | | The report needs to be rebuilt to reflect your selections Rebuild report Rebuild report | |
| ⊛ Huw B | ristow | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Figure 26: Rebuilding feedback reports

The information presented will display the user feedback together with the manager feedback depending on whether the assessment has been created as user and manager and if the manager has completed their feedback assessment.

| FEEDBACK RESULTS | REPORT | | |
|--|---------------------------|---|--------|
| Report Filters | Start Date 22-Nov-2015 | (1) | |
| Sales and Service | End Date 24-Dec-2015 | | Export |
| Sales and Service Sales and Service | - Self (I) | | |
| Sales and Service | e Algerric (Jocan Waton) | would you rate your performance this | |
| Sales and Service Sales and Service | Agent (Howard Johnson) De | suid you rake the coacking you have received this month? | |
| Sales and Service | e Agent (krys sawyer) | teă you în achieving your goals this month? | |
| Sales and Service | e Agent (Roper Caravan) | commend working here to a hierd? | |

Figure 27 Feedback Results

The information is also available for exporting to an Excel spreadsheet by selecting **Export**. The Excel spreadsheet will contain the criteria used in the assessment.

6 Managing and Viewing Crystal Reports

Skills Assessor supports importing and viewing custom-designed Crystal Reports. The features associated with Crystal Reports are located in the Manage Reports, Report Categories and View Reports pages.

Note: The new Crystal Reports functionality is only supported for Internet Explorer version 8 or above and the latest versions of other browsers (e.g. Chrome, Firefox and Safari).

6.1 Managing Report Settings

The Manage Reports page allows users to create, edit, delete and re-arrange report categories. Reports can then be associated with specific categories.

To create a new category, first select the parent category (i.e. the one that you want the new category to be under in the hierarchy), then click the green '+' icon.

Clicking on the new category twice will allow you to rename it. It is also possible to move categories to different locations by dragging them into other categories.

To delete a category, select it from the hierarchy and click the red 'X' icon. If the delete icon is disabled (if it is greyed out instead of red) then the selected category cannot be deleted. A category can be deleted only if it does not contain any other categories or reports.

6.2 Managing Reports

The manage reports page allows the user to view, add, edit, delete and archive reports. The main controls in this page are displayed in the following screenshot:

| MANAGE REPORTS | | | | | |
|--------------------------------|------------------|--------------|----------|--------------|------------------|
| + Add New Report | | | | | 🖒 Refres |
| Name No records to display. | Connection Types | Admin Report | Archived | Last Updated | |
| | ge size: 15 🔻 | | | | 0 items in 1 pag |

Figure 28: Manage Reports Page

To upload a report, click the 'Add New Report' link. A dialog box will appear. Set the report's name and category. The 'Admin Report' checkbox makes the report available to administrators only and allows them to run the report against all users in the system. Reports that are not set as admin reports will only provide information about the logged in user's subordinates. Click the 'select' button to choose a Crystal Report .rpt file to upload.

Once the upload has completed, two additional settings will need to be defined. The connection type checkboxes should be used to set which users you want the report to run against. It is possible for a report to run against Skills Assessor, Training Manager and DNA users, and any combination of the three different databases. The second option should be used to map the report database to the name of the database used for your system. After entering these settings click the 'Add' button to complete the report upload.

Note: In certain cases it is possible for users to upload Crystal Report files to the web server without completing the setup of the report item in Skills Assessor. This will result in the report file being retained by the server; however, it will not be accessible via Skills Assessor. These



files will be prefixed with 'TEMPFILE' and may be manually deleted from the server's Crystal Reports upload folder by administrators.

To edit report settings, select a report from the table in the Manage Reports page and click its associated 'Edit link'. A dialog box will appear allowing you to change the details of the report, including name, category, the Crystal Reports .rpt file and database connection details. Once you have finished editing the report click the 'Update' button to apply the changes.

To archive a report, click its associated 'Archive' link from the table in the Manage Reports page. An archived report can be unarchived in a similar manner. Reports that are archived will not be listed in the 'View Reports' page.

All uploaded reports can also be downloaded via the 'download' link from the Manage Reports page.

6.3 Viewing Reports

Reports can be generated from the 'View Reports' page. The page will initially display the category hierarchy, including the reports that have been allocated to each category. Browse the category hierarchy and select the report that you want to view. A Crystal Reports popup window will appear. Depending on how the report was developed, this window will either show the report immediately, or request additional information before displaying the report.

7 Certificates

If a user has achieved the required pass mark, the certificate will be presented automatically upon completion and can be printed, if necessary, as a record of achievement. If a printer is not available or there is only a requirement to store it electronically, it will be saved within the user's **My Certificate** page for viewing at any time.

A list of assessments that the user has successfully completed is visible in the **My Certificate** page. To view a certificate, click on an assessment name and all of the associated certificates will be displayed along with the date and time they were awarded.

Click on the certificate to open and prepare it for printing.

| MY CERTIFICATES | |
|--|---|
| Select an assessment that you have a certificat Assessments | e for, then click the certificate to view/print it. Certificates |
| Assessment 1 | Certificate 1 - 14/12/2015 15:31:39 |
| | Show certificate |

Figure 29: Viewing certificates



8 DNA

DNA is where key business data, for example, quality monitoring, sales and revenue, customer satisfaction etc., has been used in creating a job role profile and the data is weighted in order of importance to the business.

This allows visibility of where there is a potential training requirement or where performance has exceeded expectation.

There may also be the opportunity for self-learning by assigning learning items to enhance performance based on the results achieved. As a manager you will have visibility of these performance results for your team and be able to assign learning items if required to individual team members.

8.1 Filtered DNA

The **View Filtered DNA** page shows user performance, compared to the aggregate DNA block and can be viewed by hierarchical position or at individual level. **Note**: Hierarchical viewing options depend on permissions user has assigned.

In the following example, the total number of users who are in green, amber or red based on their aggregated DNA **score** (based on the DNA components and the weightings) are shown in the top right hand corner and as donut graphs.



Figure 30: View Filtered DNA page

To view the individual user results, either click on the graph or expand the hierarchy. **Note**: Managers will only have access to see data of their direct reports, and employees without direct reports will only be able to view their own data.

| ulate By: Current • Refresh | | | | Total No of employees gree Total No of employees amb Total No of employees red | ber |
|-----------------------------|------------------|----|-----------------|--|-----|
| | | | | Total No of employees | |
| Demo Inc | Guernsey | НQ | London | | |
| Guernsey | | | | | |
| Owen Bower | Green 38.89% | | Green 33.39% | | |
| ▼ Sales Role | | | | Enther | |
| ► Green | Anber 61 11% | | | Anber 66.67% | |
| Amber | | | | | |
| Brandon Rutherford | Manchester | | | | |
| Anna Bell | | | | | |
| Richard Springer | Green 50.00% | | | | |
| Audrey Arnold | | | | | |
| Deirdre Gibson | | | | | |
| Jasmine Dowd | Artber 50.00% | | | | |
| Una Hunter | | | | | |
| Caroline Allan | | | | | |
| Eaac Graham | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Figure 31: Viewing detailed information in the View Filtered DNA page

Select an individual user to view their DNA results. Any under performing areas will show on the right under Alerts.

| Calculate By: Current • Refresh | | Total No of employees green a Total No of employees amber a Total No of employees red |
|---------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---|
| | | Total No of employees |
| Demo Inc | User: Una Hunter Alerts | |
| Guernsey | Job role Performance Data | |
| Owen Bower | Field Value | Arres & Columbrat |
| ▼ Sales Role | Acceptent - Product show | elegge - |
| ► Green | Login ID UK_Agent_033 | |
| * Amber | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | |
| Brandon Rutherford | Compare Show DNA Show DNA Map | |
| Anna Bell | Assign Learning Items | |
| Richard Springer | | |
| Audrey Arnold | | |
| Deirdre Gibson | | |
| Jasmine Dowd | | |
| Una Hunter | | |
| Caroline Alian | | |
| Isaac Graham | | |
| Kylie Mackay | | |
| Heather Powell | | |

Figure 32: Viewing individual DNA results

Click on **Show DNA** to view the DNA block for the individual.

| culate By: Current • Refresh | | Total No of employees green Total No of employees amber Total No of employees red |
|--------------------------------|-------------------------------|---|
| | | Total No of employees |
| Demo Inc | User: Una Hunter Alerts | |
| Guernsey | Job role Performance Data | |
| Owen Bower | Field Value | E Solar over |
| Sales Role | Kostoment - Product Knowledg | |
| ► Green | Login ID UK_Agent_033 | |
| * Amber | | |
| Brandon Rutherford | Compare Hide DNA Show DNA Map | |
| Anna Bell | Assign Learning Items | |
| Richard Springer | 8 B Soft Skills | |
| Audrey Arnold | (49.44) | |
| Deirdre Gibson | B Sales Performance | |
| Jasmine Dowd | 58 (60.67) | |
| Una Hunter | | |
| Caroline Allan | B Call Handling (64.03) | |
| Isaac Graham | | |
| | | |

Figure 33: Viewing individual DNA results

lick on Show DNA Map to view the full DNA breakdown.

| DNA Map | | | | | <i>6</i> × |
|---|---|---|--|---|--|
| S B Soft SMIS. (49.44) S B Sales Performance (60.67) S B Sales Performance (64.03) | | | | | |
| Sales Role | | | | | |
| b Quality Stores (877)8 5 Convictors (11.13) | | 5 Sales (48.01) b Sales Conversions (73.33) | | ۵ (59.00) ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۹ ۵ ۵ ۹ ۵ ۹ ۵ ۹ ۵ ۹ ۵ ۹ ۵ | |
| B Soft Skills | | B Sales Performance | | B Call Handling | |
| 20M - Agent Atstude (5.00) 23 QM - Costomer Info Fe (10.00) QM - Customer (8.00) | A suscession of the offy Indiations B and score (1.00) A subsection B and score (1.00) A subsection of the offy (1.00) M subsection of the offy (1.00) A subsection of the offy (1.00) A subsection of the offy (1.00) | Sales - Sales oer Hour (13.00) Sales - Average Sales Value (59.00) | 23 Sales - Conversion RateVi (73-33) | CL ACD - Callsper Hour (15.00) CL ACD - AHT (1977.33) | Za ACD-Hold Time (3.89) Za ACQ-RAY Time (15.79) Za ACD-Talk Time (177.59) |
| b Quality Scores | b Knowledge | b Sales | b Sales Conversions | b Call Taking | b Handle Time |

Figure 34: Viewing the DNA map

There is also the option to compare an individual's scores against another job role to identify possible development areas or career progression.



Figure 35: Comparing individuals with other job roles

To view any associated learning items that might be available to assign to the individual, click on **Assign Learning Items**.

| Demo Incl Guernoy • Guernoy • Sales Role • Sales Role • Gennor • Momer • Annoer Bandon Rutherford Ans Bell Richard Springer Audrey Amodi Derdre Globon Jamine Devid Ganine Allan Sase Srian Kyle Kaklay | alculate By: Current • Refresh | | Total No of employees green Total No of employees amber Total No of employees red |
|---|--------------------------------|---------------------------|---|
| Guernosy Guernosy Guernosy Sales Role Greeni Greeni Amber Brandon Rutherford Anns Bel Richard Springer Audrey Amold Deirdre Gloson Jasmine Devot Greine Allan base Graham | | | Total No of employees |
| Over Bower Sales Role Green Amber Brandon Rutherford Ans Bel Richard Springer Audrey Amold Derdre Globon Jasmine Dovd Caroline Allan Isaac Graham | | User. Una nunter | |
| Sales Role Soles Roles Role Soles Roles Role Soles Roles Roles Roles Roles Roles Role Soles Roles R | | Field Value | en B Coloni |
| Crean Anna Bel Anna Bel Anna Bel Anna Compare Caroline Allan Caroline Allan Saac Graham | Sales Role | A caurent a Product train | |
| Arnola Compare Arno Bell Assign Learning Items Richard Springer Audrey Arnold Deriore Glocon Jacmine Dowd Caroline Allan Salaria Sac Graham Salaria | Green | Login ID UK_Agent_USS | |
| Anna Bell Anna Bell Richard Springer Audrey Annold Deirdre Gloson Japmine Dowd Una Hunter Caroline Allan base Graham | Amber | | |
| Anna Bell Richard Springer Audrey Amold Deirdre Glisson Jasmine Dowd Una Hunter Caroline Allan Isaac Graham | Brandon Rutherford | | |
| Audrey Amold Deirdre Glöson Jasmine Dowd Una Hunter Caroline Allan Isaac Graham | Anna Bell | | |
| Deirdre Gloson Jasmine Dowd Una Hunter Caroline Allan Isaac Graham | Richard Springer | | |
| Jasmine Dowd Una Hunter Caroline Allan Isaac Graham | Audrey Arnold | | |
| Una Hunter Caroline Allan Izasc Graham | Deirdre Gibson | | |
| Caroline Allan Isaac Graham | Jasmine Dowd | | |
| Isaac Graham | Una Hunter | | |
| | Caroline Allan | | |
| Kylie Mackay | Isaac Graham | | |
| | Kylie Mackay | | |

Figure 36: Assigning Learning Items

Recommended learning items will be presented as per the following example. Tick the box at the left-hand side to select and assign them. In the example below, Objection Handling has been selected.

| * | Optim Select | Item | ign Learnir _{Type} | ng Items Linked DNA Components | Achieved | Current range | Auto Priority | Manual Priority | Date From | Date To | | × |
|---|-----------------|------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------------------|----------|------------------|------------------|--------------------|-----------|---------|---|---|
| • | Recor | Name mmended | | | | | | | | | | l |
| | | Handsets - iphone 4 | Assessments | Assessment - Product Knowledge | 2 | 0 - 100 | 1 | 1 | | | ן | |
| | | Selling Tips | Knowledge Nudge | Sales - Average Sales Value | 59 | 0 - 100 | 2 | 3 | Ē | Ĩ | ן | |
| • | Core | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | AHT Tips | E-Learning URL | ACD - AHT | 197.33 | 0 - 100 | 3 | 2 | Ē | Ĩ | ן | |



| | | Name | | Components | | range | Priority | Priority | | |
|---|------|------------------------|--------------------|--------------------------------------|--------|---------|----------|----------|---|--|
| • | Reco | mmended | | | | | | | | |
| | | Handsets - iphone 4 | Assessments | Assessment - Product Knowledge | 2 | 0 - 100 | 1 | 1 | Ē | |
| | | Selling Tips | Knowledge Nudge | Sales - Average Sales Value | 59 | 0 - 100 | 2 | 3 | Ē | |
| • | Core | | | | | | | | | |
| | | AHT Tips | E-Learning URL | ACD - AHT | 197.33 | 0 - 100 | 3 | 2 | | |

Scroll down to the bottom to select Assign and View Users Report.

Figure 38: Assigning Learning Items

Assigned Learning Items will be added to the list of Assessments, Learning Items and Knowledge Nudges available to the user under their My Development page. In addition to this a PDF file will be created and downloaded detailing which Learning Items have been assigned to the user.

9 Changing Your Password

To change your account password select the **Change Password** link from the navigation menu. Enter your existing password and new password into the form, then click **Save** to confirm the change.

| Old Password | |
|----------------------|------|
| New Password | |
| Confirm New Password | |
| | Save |

Figure 39: Changing your passwordTagging

The tagging feature allows the user to be able to assign a tag reference to an assessment, assessment content, knowledge nudges as well as to individual questions.

10 Adding a new Tag within manage assessments

To add a tag to an assessment, assessment content or a Question, click the edit button within the assessment manager. This will enable the option to add a new tag to the assessment as show below.

| First Question | 12 | Edit | ~ | Save | × | Cancel | |
|----------------|-------|--------|--------|---------------|------|-----------|--|
| 🔲 When creati | ng n | ew Mu | ultipl | le Choic | e an | d Pick Co | prrect Questions, add an initial "Do Not Know" answer. |
| 📠 Tagging | | | | | | Clic | ck to add a tag and enter the |
| Tags Tagging | × | A | DD | \mathcal{F} | | nar | ne. |
| Figure 40: | Addiı | ng a T | ad | | | | |

After the save button has been pressed, the new tags will be added and the editor will exit the edit mode.



Figure 41: Newly added tags

Deleting a Tag

Deleting a tag simply requires the user to press the 'X' (as show below) whilst in the edit mode. Once this is done and the user has clicked save, the tag will be removed.



Figure 42: Removing a Tag

11 Personal Development Reviews

The new PDR feature allows agents to specify their personal development objectives and have these objectives reviewed and approved by their manager.

The feature is divided into two new widgets: PDR and PDR Dashboard. The PDR page is primarily for agents to define their development objectives, whilst the dashboard allows managers to edit, approve and check the status of their reports' PDRs.

11.1 PDR Dashboard Widget

Managers can view the status of their reports' PDRs, as well as edit and approve PDR objectives submitted by their reports via the **PDR Dashboard** widget.

| PDR Dashboa | ard | |
|-------------------------------|--------------------|-------------|
| User $ ightarrow$ PDR Dashboa | ard | |
| LOGIN ID | NAME | STATUS |
| CTB20 | Malkhazni Dratchev | Submitted 🖌 |
| CTB44 | Juanito Gairbekov | In Progress |
| CTB32 | Zelim Kadiev | Approved 🗣 |
| CTB38 | Penultimo Kadyrov | Not Started |
| CTB8 | Bekbulat Korgay | Not Started |
| CTB14 | Batir Korgay | Not Started |
| CTB50 | Zulikhan Panova | Not Started |
| CTB26 | Salavdi Timayev | Not Started |
| | | |

Figure 43: PDR Dashboard

Selecting the **PDR Dashboard** widget from the navigation menu will display the logged-in manager's list of direct reports, including their Login ID, name and PDR status. The status column will contain either: **Not started**, **In Progress**, **Submitted for Approval** (available for review and approval by the manager) or **Approved** (for PDRs that have been approved by the manager). Reports' PDRs will become available for viewing and editing by the manager once they've been submitted. Once a PDR has been approved it will become available to both the agent and manager in read-only mode.

| ENVIRONMENTAL* | FINANCE* | VISION* | OPERATING EFFICIENCY | CUSTOMER | | PROGRESS | OBJECTIVES |
|---|------------------|-------------------|---------------------------------------|----------|---------------------|--------------|-----------------|
| NVIRONMENTAL DESTR | UCTION: | | | | | | |
| ake all the steps necessary t | o ensure the pro | fitability, espec | ially if it leads to environmental da | image. | | | <u></u> |
| | TIVE 2 | | | | | | + ADD OBJECTIVE |
| BIECTIVE DETAIL | | | | | | | |
| | ue from new so | urces by not less | than £10,000 during the next year. | | | | |
| increase the amount of reven | ue from new so | urces by not less | than £10,000 during the next year. | | | | |
| | | urces by not less | than £10,000 during the next year. | | | | |
| Increase the amount of reven | | urces by not less | than £10,000 during the next year. | | | | |
| ncrease the amount of reven HOW WILL THIS BE ACHIEVED: | l sales | urces by not less | | | WHAT IS THE TARGET. | TARGET DATE: | |

Figure 44: Reviewing objectives

11.2 Feature notes

11.2.1 PDR Dashboard Widget

Managers will only be able to see the PDRs of users who are directly below them in the hierarchy.



12 Logging Out

To logout ensure that you have no open assessments and click the click **Logout** link as shown below.



XImage: Image: Imag

Expanded Menu

Figure 45: Logout

